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• 

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF VIRGINIA 

fILED 

Richmond Division ZnUq OCT 21 A 'I: 33 

THE ARC OF VIRGINIA, INC., a not-for­
profit corporation, 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

TIMOTHY M. KAINE, in his official capacity 
as Governor of the Commonwealth of Virginia, : 
VIOLA O. BASKERVILLE, in her official 
capacity as Secretary of Administration 
of the Commonwealth of Virginia, 
MARILYN B. TAVENNER, in her official 
capacity as Secretary of Health and 
Human Resources ofthe Commonwealth 
of Virginia, DR. JAMES S. REINHARD, in his : 
official capacity as Commissioner ofthe 
Department of Behavioral Health and 
Developmental Services of the Commonwealth: 
of Virginia, and 
RICHARD F. SLIWOSKl, P .E., in his 
official capacity as Director of the Department 
of General Services of the Commonwealth of 
Virginia, 

Defendants. 

COMPLAINT 

COMPLAINT 

Case No.: 3: 0'1 c\/ f.clll.o 

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT 

This case asks the Court to prevent the Commonwealth of Virginia from keeping people 

with intellectual disabilities in an unlawful state of "unjustified institutional isolation" in 

defiance of the Supreme Court's Olmstead decision. 

The Defendants intend to build a new segregated institution to "replace" Southeastern 

Virginia Training Center ("SEVTC"), a state institution for Virginians with intellectual 
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disabilities. Under the Defendants' plan, 75 SEVTC residents will be forced to live in the new 

institution, even though a state-sponsored study found that each and every one of them can be 

served in the community rather than in an institution. 

As a result, Defendants' plan violates those SEVTC residents' rights under federal law, 

including their rights to be free from discrimination and to receive services "in the most 

integrated setting" appropriate to their needs under the Americans with Disabilities Act, Section 

504 ofthe Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and the Supreme Court's decision in Olmsteadv. L.e., 527 

U.S. 581 (1999). 

Plaintiff, The Arc of Virginia, Inc., prays that this Court hold that Defendants' plan, 

and/or the state Budget Bill Item that precipitated it, violate federal law and the rights of Arc 

members. Doing so will prevent the Defendants from building the new institution, protect the 

rights of people with intellectual disabilities to live in the most integrated setting and preserve 

the right of SEVTC residents to live in an appropriate, government-owned or operated facility if 

they choose to do so. 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

1. This Court has subject matter jurisdiction over this action pursuant to 28 U.S.C. 

§ 1331 and 28 U.S.C. § 1343. 

2. This Court has personal jurisdiction over the Defendants in that they are residents 

of the Commonwealth of Virginia and are employed as officials of the 

Commonwealth of Virginia. 

3. The Arc's prayers for Declaratory relief are authorized by 28 U.S.c. § 2201. 

2 



Case 3:09-cv-00686-REP   Document 1   Filed 10/27/09   Page 3 of 62 PageID# 3, 

4. The Arc's prayers for Injunctive relief are authorized by the Title II of the 

Americans with Disabilities Act, 42 U.S.c. § 12l3l ("The ADA"), Section 504 of 

The Rehabilitation Act of 1973,29 U.S.C. § 794 ("Section 504") and the 

Supremacy Clause of the Constitution of the United States, U.S. Const. art. VI, cl. 

2. 

5. Venue is appropriate in this District pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391 as this matter 

arose in this District and the Defendants' offices are located in this District. 

PARTIES 

PLAINTIFF 

6. Plaintiff, The Arc of Virginia, Inc. ("the Arc"), is a not-for-profit corporation. 

The Arc is the Virginia state Chapter of The Arc of the United States, the world's 

largest community-based organization of and for people with intellectual and 

developmental disabilities. With the Arc of the United States and its over 780 

state and local chapters, the Arc is devoted to promoting and improving supports 

and services for all people with intellectual disabilities. 

7. The Arc's membership is comprised of people with intellectual disabilities, their 

family members and advocates. 

8. The Arc is governed by a Board of Directors, three of whom are people with 

intellectual disabilities. The Arc's Board of Directors meets at least four times 

each year. 

9. Each local chapter has a representative on the Board. Local chapter 

representatives are selected by the local chapter's Board of Directors, many of 
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which have members with intellectual disabilities. Each local chapter's Board is 

elected by its members. 

10. The Arc's Mission Statement is "The Arc of Virginia advocates for the rights and 

full participation of all children and adults with intellectual and developmental 

disabilities. Together with our network of members and affiliated chapters, we 

improve systems of supports and services; connect families; inspire communities 

and influence public policy." 

11. To fulfill its mission, the Arc engages in activities including, but not limited to: 

advocating for changes to law and public policy to benefit it members and people 

with intellectual and developmental disabilities; organizing and collaborating with 

individuals and organizations that advocate for changes to law and public policy 

to benefit its members and people with intellectual and developmental disabilities; 

providing information to its members and people with intellectual and 

developmental disabilities, their families and advocates about important issues; 

providing training for its members and people with intellectual and developmental 

disabilities to become self-advocates for issues important to them; providing 

information to the public, government and policymakers about issues that are 

important to its members and people with intellectual and developmental 

disabilities; and holding an annual conference bringing together its members, 

people with intellectual and developmental disabilities, advocates and 

policymakers from across the state to discuss and influence public policy. The 

Arc frequently speaks out on issues important to people with intellectual and 
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developmental disabilities and has been a leader in the struggle to prevent the 

Commonwealth from building a new segregated institution. 

12. The Arc is pursuing this action to protect the rights of its members who are or 

may become residents of SEVTC and are, therefore, threatened with being placed 

in the new segregated institution rather than in the most integrated setting 

appropriate to their needs. These individuals have each suffered injuries, or are 

threatened with injuries" including violation of their rights under federal law and 

continued, unjustified institutionalization" that would allow them to bring suit 

against the Defendants in their own right. 

l3. The Arc is also pursuing this action in its own right because it has had to divert 

resources from its previously planned projects and efforts in order to oppose the 

Defendants' plan to build and fully populate a new segregated institution and 

Budget Bill Item 103.05(A)(I), to the extent it requires such a plan. 

14. If the Defendants are permitted to implement their plan and build the new 

segregated institution, the Arc will have to continue to divert resources from its 

other work in order to provide information and advocacy to residents of the 

institution and to people threatened with admission to the institution. 

DEFENDANTS 

15. Defendant Timothy M. Kaine ("the Governor") is sued in his official capacity as 

the Governor ofthe Commonwealth of Virginia. The Governor is the highest 

state official of the Commonwealth of Virginia. The Governor "shall have the 

authority and responsibility for the formulation and administration of the policies 

5 



Case 3:09-cv-00686-REP   Document 1   Filed 10/27/09   Page 6 of 62 PageID# 6

of the executive branch." Va. Code § 2.2-103(A). The Governor has an 

obligation to ensure that his actions, policies and those of his subordinates and 

members of his administration comply with and uphold the ADA and Section 

504. The Governor has failed in his obligation. 

16. The Governor may be served at Patrick HeillY Building, 3rd Floor, 1111 East 

Broad Street, Richmond, Virginia 23219. 

17. Defendant Viola O. Baskerville ("the Secretary of Administration"), is sued in her 

official capacity as the Secretary of Administration for the Commonwealth of 

Virginia. The Secretary of Administration is appointed by the Governor and 

"serves at the pleasure of the Governor." Va. Code § 2.2-200 (A). The Secretary 

of Administration has the power and obligation to hold the agencies in her charge 

"accountable for their administrative, fiscal and program actions in the conduct of 

the respective powers and duties of the agencies [and] [d]irect the development of 

goals, objectives, policies and plans that are necessary to the effective and 

efficient operation of government." Va. Code § 2.2-200(C)(3-4). The Secretary 

of Administration oversees the Department of General Services ("DGS") and has 

an obligation to ensure that her actions, policies and those ofDGS comply with 

the ADA and Section 504. The Secretary has failed in her obligation. 

18. The Secretary of Administration may be served at Patrick Henry Building, 1111 

East Broad Street, Richmond, Virginia 23219. 

19. Defendant Marilyn B. Tavenner ("the Secretary of Health and Human 

Resources") is sued in her official capacity as the Secretary of Health and Human 

Resources for the Commonwealth of Virginia. The Secretary of Health and 
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Human Resources is appointed by the Governor and "serves at the pleasure of the 

Governor." Va. Code § 2.2-200 (A). The Secretary of Health and Human 

Resources has the power and obligation to hold the agencies in her charge 

"accountable for their administrative, fiscal and program actions in the conduct of 

the respective powers and duties of the agencies [and] [d]irect the development of 

goals, objectives, policies and plans that are necessary to the effective and 

efficient operation of government." Va. Code § 2.2-200(C)(3-4). The Secretary 

of Health and Human Resources oversees the Department of Behavioral Health 

and Developmental Services ("DBHDS," formerly known as the Department of 

Mental Health, Mental Retardation and Substance Abuse Services 

("DMHMRSAS")) and has an obligation to ensure that her actions, policies and 

those of DBHDS comply with the ADA and Section 504. The Secretary has 

failed in her obligation. 

20. The Secretary of Health and Human Resources may be served at Patrick Henry 

Building, 1111 East Broad Street, Richmond, Virginia 23219. 

21. Defendant Dr. James Reinhard ("the Commissioner") is sued in his official 

capacity as the Commissioner ofDBHDS (formerly known as DMHMRSAS). 

The Commissioner is charged to "supervise and manage the Department and its 

state facilities." Va. Code Ann.§ 37.2-304. The Commissioner is obligated to 

ensure that his actions, policies and those of DBHDS comply with the ADA and 

Section 504. The Commissioner has failed in his obligation. 

22. The Commissioner may be served at 1220 Bank Street, Richmond, VA 23219. 
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23. Defendant Richard F. Sliwoski, P .E. ("the Director") is sued in his official 

capacity as the Director of DGS. The Director is "responsible for the overall 

supervision of the Department's divisions, programs and personnel." Va. Code 

Ann. § 2.2-1100. The Director is obligated to ensure that his actions, policies and 

those of DGS comply with the ADA and Section 504. The Director has failed in 

his obligation. 

24. The Director may be served 1100 Bank Street, Suite 420, Richmond, V A 23219. 

FACTS 

25. SEVTC is located on a 120 acre compound in an isolated section of Chesapeake, 

Virginia. 

26. SEVTC can be entered by car only by turning off of Military Highway 13 onto 

Smith Avenue and then snaking through an industrial park, past signs saying "No 

Trespassing. " 

27. SEVTC is segregated from the community at large on all sides. 

28. SEVTC is segregated from the residential community on its Eastern border by a 

trench that is approximately one quarter mile long, five feet wide and two feet 

deep. Where the trench ends, SEVTC is segregated from that community by an 

approximately six foot high fence. It is also segregated from that community by 

multiple "No Trespassing" signs. All of the "No Trespassing" signs face the 

community, telling community members that they are not welcome at SEVTC. 

29. The SEVTC compound is segregated from the industrial park along its Northern 

border by "No Trespassing" signs. 
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30. The SEVTC compound is segregated from the community along its Southern 

border by Interstate 64. 

31. The SEVTC compound is segregated from the business development along its 

Western border by a .six foot high fence. 

32. If people who wish to visit the compound can ford these boundaries, they are then 

required to report to SEVTC's main office to request admission. 

33. Under its visitation policy, SEVTC can deny any person or organization access to 

the compound, at its discretion.! SEVTC can do so even when an SEVTC 

resident has not been found incompetent by a court of law and has expressed a 

desire to meet with that person or organization. 

34. SEVTC has used this authority to restrict its residents' contacts with organizations 

it presumably does not approve of. 

35. For example, when the Arc formed a Chesapeake chapter to advocate for the 

rights of its members and other SEVTC residents, its self-advocate went to 

SEVTC to give residents information about the Arc and about their rights. 

36. The Director of SEVTC, Robert D. Shrewsberry, Ph.D., responded by barring the 

Arc and its staff from soliciting membership or providing written information to 

SEVTC residents. 

37. However, SEVTC allows members of other groups - presumably ones Dr. 

Shrewsberry likes - to visit SEVTC, solicit membership, distribute information 

and conduct meetings on the SEVTC compound. 

! SEVTC cannot exclude organizations that have a statutory right to enter SEVTC, such as the 
Virginia Office for Protection and Advocacy. 
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38. SEVTC even provides advertising for one such group, known as "Parents and 

Friends ofSEVTC." 

39. When Dr. Shrewsberry was asked why SEVTC provides such support to that 

group, he replied in a letter, "we see [Parents and Friends of SEVTCj as having a 

direct interest in the operation of the Center. The Arc does not enjoy such status." 

40. SEVTC also restricts residents' rights to travel off ofthe compound and interact 

with nondisabled people. For example, under SEVTC policy, it can, in its 

discretion, determine that a resident is not "competent" to leave the compound 

and deny him or her the opportunity to see or mingle with members of the 

community at large. SEVTC can do so even when a person has not been found 

incompetent by a court of law. 

41. In his proposed budget for 20 I 0, the Governor proposed closing SEVTC. In an 

interview, the Governor stated that money spent on SEVTC should be put "into 

community services to treat people with mental illness and mental retardation." 

The Governor further stated that SEVTC residents "don't need to be 

institutionalized." See, WAVY-TV, "Kaine on the economy and 'going green,'" 

available at 

http://www.wavy.comldpp/news/local wavy kaine budget update southeastern 

20090112 

42. The Governor's proposed budget called for redirecting money that had been 

earmarked for construction at SEVTC to build community-based housing for 

people with intellectual disabilities. 
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43. The Secretary of Health and Human Resources and the Commissioner supported 

the Governor's plan to close SEVTC and provide community-based services in 

testimony to the Virginia General Assembly and at public meetings. 

44. However, instead of closing SEVTC, the Virginia General Assembly passed 

Budget Bill Item 103.05(A)(l), which ordered that a new 75-bed "facility" be 

built. A copy of Budget Bill Item 103.05, which contains Item 103.05(A)(I), is 

attached to and made a part of this Complaint as Exhibit A. 

45. Budget Bill Item 103.05(A)(1) directs the Department of Mental Health, Mental 

Retardation and Substance Abuse Services ("DMHRMSAS," now known as 

DBHDS) and DGS to "rebuild and resize the Southeastern Virginia Training 

Center to a 75-bed facility to serve profound and severely disabled clients" and 

allots $23,768,000.00 for construction. 

46. Upon information and belief, before passing Budget Bill Item 103 .05(A)(l), 

neither the General Assembly nor the Defendants performed or caused to be 

performed any evaluations or analysis to determine whether a new segregated 

institution is necessary to provide services to SEVTC residents. 

47. Upon information and belief, before passing Budget Bill Item 103.05(A)(l), 

neither the General Assembly nor the Defendants performed or caused to be 

performed any individualized evaluations or analysis of SEVTC residents to 

determine if any require services in a new segregated institution that cannot be 

provided in more integrated, community-based settings. 

48. Upon information and belief, before passing Budget Bill Item 103 .05(A)(l), 

neither the General Assembly nor the Defendants performed or caused to be 
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performed any evaluations or analysis to determine whether a new segregated 

institution would provide more appropriate and lawful services to SEVTC 

residents than those offered in more integrated, community-based settings. 

49. The General Assembly also passed Budget Bill Item 103.05(A)(3), which directs 

DGS and DMHMRSAS to "build, acquire or renovate 12 community based 

Intermediate Care Facilities (ICF-MR) and 6 MR Homes." 

50. In April of2009, the Governor approved and signed the Commonwealth's budget 

for 20 I 0, including Budget Billltem 103 .05(A)(l) and Budget Billltem 

103.05(A)(3). 

51. The Governor could have exercised his "line item veto" power to remove Budget 

Billltem 103.05(A)(I), but chose not to do so. 

52. Upon information and belief, the Defendants are each implementing or working to 

implement Budget Billltem 103.05(A)(l). 

53. In June of2009, a state-sponsored study ofSEVTC residents concluded that all 

SEVTC residents "Can Be Served in the Community," confirming the Governor's 

belief that SEVTC residents "don't need to be institutionalized." The study was 

performed by the Human Services Resource Institute, pursuant to a contract with 

DBHDS, and was based on medical records and evaluation data collected and 

kept by DBHDS. A copy ofthe study is attached to and made a part of this 

Complaint as Exhibit B. 

54. On or about 29 June 2009, the Arc wrote to the Governor, stating that the state­

sponsored survey shows that there is no need to build the new segregated 

institution because all SEVTC residents can be served in the community. The Arc 
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asked the Governor to defer building the new institution to study the results of the 

survey. 

55. On or about 9 July 2009, the Secretary of Health and Human Resources 

responded on behalf of the Governor. She stated that the Governor would not 

delay building the new institution. 

56. On or about 6 July 2009, the Commissioner responded to a request for 

information asking whether current SEVTC residents will make up the population 

of the new institution. 

57. The Commissioner stated "[T]he process for determining the identity of the 

individuals who will be offered SEVTC beds is currently in development. No one 

has yet been selected as a candidate for an SEVTC bed at this date." A copy of 

the Commissioner's letter is attached to and made a part of this Complaint as 

Exhibit C. 

58. DBHDS (formerly known as DMHMRSAS) headed an Advisory Committee of 

stakeholders to discuss ways to implement Budget Billltem 103.05(A)(l). 

59. The Arc was made a member of the SEVTC Advisory Committee. As a member 

of the Advisory Committee, the Arc opposed plans to build a segregated 

institution and advocated for SEVTC residents to be provided with community­

based services. 

60. On 13 August 2009, DBHDS informed the Advisory Committee of the 

Defendants' plan for implementing Budget Bill Item 103.05(A)(l). The 

Commissioner gave a summary of the plan and answered questions regarding it. 
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61. At the time the Commissioner announced Defendants' plan, there were 155 

residents of SEVTC. 

62. Under the Defendants' plan, a new segregated 75-bed institution will be built 

under the auspices of DGS and DBHDS, which are headed by the Director and 

the Commissioner, respectively. 

63. Under the Defendants' plan, the new segregated institution will be built on the 

SEVTC compound 

64. In response to a question, the Commissioner stated that the 75-bed census for the 

new institution was not arrived at through any "science or study." 

65. Under the Defendants' plan, the new segregated institution will be fully populated 

by current and future SEVTC residents. 

66. Upon information and belief, the Defendants' plan calls for the new segregated 

institution to remain fully populated. 

67. Under the Defendants' plan, all SEVTC residents will be evaluated. The 

Commissioner stated that the evaluations would not be conducted using the 

Supports Intensity Scale (SIS), a nationally recognized method for determining 

the true support needs for people with intellectual disabilities. 

68. The Commissioner's refusal to use the SIS is troubling, given that the state­

sponsored survey fmding that all SEVTC residents can live in the community was 

completed, in large part, using the SIS. 

69. Based on DBHDS' evaluation method, 65 SEVTC residents will be chosen to live 

in the new institution - whether or not those persons actually require treatment in 

an institutional setting. 
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70. Under the Defendants' plan, the remaining 10 beds in the new institntion will be 

filled with SEVTC residents who are transitioning from or to community settings. 

71. Under Defendants' plan, the remaining SEVTC residents will be placed in the 

community-based Intermediate Care Facilities for the Mentally Retarded ("ICF­

MRs") and MR homes provided for in Budget Bill Item 103 .05(A)(3) or in other 

community placements. 

72. A DBHDS representative publicly admitted that there will be "very little" to no 

difference between the service needs of those individuals forced to live in the new 

segregated institntion and those permitted to live in the community-based ICF­

MRs and MR homes. 

73. Upon information and belief, and as required by federal law, the community­

based ICF-MRs called for in Budget Bill Item 103.05(A)(3) will provide the 

SEVTC residents chosen to live in them with the same level of care provided in 

SEVTC, but in a more integrated, community-based setting. 

74. Upon information and belief, prior to creating their plan to build and fully 

populate the new institution, Defendants did not perform or cause to be performed 

any evaluations or analysis, with the exception of the state-sponsored study 

concluding that all SEVTC residents can be served in the community, to 

determine whether a new segregated institution is necessary to provide services to 

SEVTC residents. 

75. Upon information and belief, prior to creating their plan to build and fully 

populate the new institution, Defendants did not perform or cause to be performed 

any individualized evaluations or analysis of SEVTC residents, with the exception 
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of the state-sponsored study concluding that all SEVTC residents can be served in 

the community, to determine if any require services in a new segregated 

institution that cannot not be provided in more integrated, community-based 

settings. 

76. Upon information and belief, prior to creating their plan to build and populate the 

new institution, Defendants did not perform or cause to be performed any 

evaluations or analysis, with the exception of the state-sponsored study 

concluding that all SEVTC residents can be served in the community, to 

determine whether the new segregated institution will provide more appropriate 

services to SEVTC residents than those offered in more integrated, community­

based settings. 

77. On or about 19 August 2009, counsel for the Governor responded to a request for 

"copies of all assessments, evaluations, studies or documents that were created or 

reviewed prior-to or leading to the conclusion that a new 75 bed institution is 

needed or appropriate." Counsel stated that there were no such documents in the 

possession, custody or control of the Governor, the Secretary of Administration or 

the Secretary of Health and Human Resources. 

78. Counsel also stated that the Governor and the two Secretaries did not have "any 

individualized assessments ... indicating that a new institution is required to 

house people with disabilities" or any documents "indicating how, specifically, 

the 75 bed census was determined." 

79. Counsel's letter was copied to each of the Defendants herein. A copy of the letter 

is attached to and made a part of this Complaint as Exhibit D. 
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80. Instead of performing such evaluations or assessments to determine the actual 

needs of SEVTC residents and forming a plan to meet those needs in the most 

integrated setting appropriate to them, the Defendants simply created a plan that 

will result in 75 people being placed in a new segregated institution, whether or 

not those people actually require services in an institutional setting. 

8!. On 21 September 2009, the Commissioner testified to a committee of the Virginia 

General Assembly about Defendants' plan. 

82. Upon information and belief, in response to a question, the Commissioner 

admitted that each and every person residing in a state-run institution for people 

with intellectual disabilities, even those with the most severe needs, can be served 

in community-based settings. 

83. On 13 October 2009, Heidi Dix, Deputy Commissioner ofDBHDS, gave a 

presentation to Virginia'S Community Integration Advisory Committee on 

Defendants' plan to build the new segregated institution. 

84. In response to a question, Ms. Dix stated that the proposed 75-bed census for the 

new institution was not based on the individual needs of SEVTC residents. 

85. Ms. Dix stated that the 75-bed census seemed "arbitrary" to DBHDS. 

86. Ms. Dix stated that one ofthe members of the Virginia General Assembly who 

proposed that census told her that it was based on the population of a children's 

institution and seemed like "a nice round number." 

87. Defendants have received two proposals for building the new institution. Each 

proposal calls for the construction of a separate and segregated 75-bed institution 

to house SEVTC residents. 
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88. Under Defendants' plan, they will choose a proposal and sign a contract with one 

bidder in December 2009. Construction on the new institution is scheduled to 

begin in August 20 I O. 

89. On or about October 14, 2009, each Defendant was provided with additional 

notice ofthe nature of the claims making up this action. The Arc gave the 

Defendants notice that it considers their plan to build and fully populate a new 

segregated institution and Budget Item 1O.05(A)(I), as passed or as implemented 

by Defendants' plan, to violate federal law. 

90. The Arc has requested that Defendants defer construction of a new segregated 

institution or explore other ways to implement Budget Item 103.05(A)(l) that 

would provide service to SEVTC residents in the most integrated setting 

appropriate to their needs. 

91. This Complaint was only filed after Defendants refused to do so. 

CAUSES OF ACTION 

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION: 

BROUGHT BY THE ARC, IN ITS ORGANIZATIONAL CAPACITY, FOR 

DECLARATORY RELIEF: 

DEFENDANTS' PLAN TO BUILD A NEW SEGREGATED INSTITUTION 

and/or BUDGET BILL ITEM l03.05(A)(1) VIOLATE ARC MEMBERS' ADA 

RlGHTS 

92. The Arc incorporates and realleges all of the foregoing as if fully set forth hereat. 
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93. The Defendants in their official capacities and the state agencies they head are 

"public entities" for the purposes of the ADA. See, 42 U.S.C. § 12131(l)(B) 

("public entities" include "any department, agency, special purpose district, or 

other instrumentality of a State or States or local government."). 

94. There are Arc members residing in SEVTC. 

95. There are also Arc members at risk of being admitted to SEVTC. These members 

are on the Commonwealth's waiting list for Medicaid services. Each of these 

individuals has been found, by representatives of the Commonwealth, to meet the 

criteria for institutionalization. Some have been found at "urgent" need of 

services in order to avoid institutionalization. If these individuals do not receive 

community-based services, they are at risk of being institutionalized and admitted 

to SEVTC. 

96. The Arc is pursuing this cause of action to protect the ADA rights of its members. 

97. The Arc members on whose behalf the Arc brings this action are all persons with 

intellectual disabilities (formerly known as "mental retardation") that limit their 

major life activities including, but not limited to, caring for themselves and 

learning. 

98. The Arc members on whose behalf the Arc brings this action all meet the essential 

eligibility requirements to receive, and do receive, services for their intellectual 

disabilities from the Commonwealth of Virginia, its state agencies and officers. 

99. Therefore, the Arc members on whose behalf the Arc brings this case are persons 

with disabilities and "qualified individuals with disabilities" for the purposes of 

the ADA. See, 42 U.S.C. § 12102; 28 C.F.R. § 35.104. 
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100. The Arc members on whose behalf the Arc brings this action would have standing 

to bring this action in their own right because Defendants' plan to build and fully 

populate a new segregated institution and Budget Bill Item 103.05(A)(1), as 

passed or as implemented by Defendants' plan, violate or threaten their ADA 

rights. 

101. Protecting the ADA rights of the Arc members on whose behalf the Arc brings 

this action is germane to the Arc's purpose, including but not limited to 

"advocat[ing] for the rights and full participation of all children and adults with 

intellectual and developmental disabilities." 

I 02. Neither the claims asserted by the Arc nor the relief sought by the Arc requires 

the participation of individual Arc members. 

103. The Arc members on whose behalf the Arc brings this action, like all SEVTC 

residents, have an ADA right to receive services in the most integrated setting 

appropriate to their needs. See, 28 C.F.R. § 35.130(d); Olmstead v. L. C, 527 U.S. 

581 (1999). 

104. As the state-sponsored study showed, no Arc member at SEVTC - indeed, no 

SEVTC resident - requires services in a segregated institution that cannot be 

provided in one of the community ICF-MRs or MR homes provided for in Budget 

Bill Item 103.05(A)(3) or in other community placements. 

105. The state-sponsored study notwithstanding, Defendants have not performed any 

appropriate or individualized analysis concluding that any Arc member or other 

SEVTC resident requires services in a new segregated institution that cannot be 
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provided in a more integrated, community-based placement such as a community 

ICF-MR, Waiver home or other community placement. 

106. The ADA provides that "no qualified individual with a disability shall, by reason 

of such disability, be excluded from participation in or be denied the benefits of 

the services, programs or activities of a public entity, or be subject to 

discrimination by such entity." 42 U.S.C. § 12132. 

107. The regulations implementing the ADA require a public entity to administer its 

services, programs and activities in "the most integrated setting appropriate to the 

needs of qualified individuals with disabilities." 28 C.F .R. § 35.13 O( d). 

108. In its Commentary to the regulations it promulgated to interpret the ADA, the 

United States Department of Justice states, "public entities are required to ensure 

that their actions are based on facts applicable to individuals and not on 

presumptions as to what a class of individuals can or cannot do." Commentary to 

28 C.F.R. § 35.130. 

109. In Olmsteadv. I.e., the Supreme Court held that "unjustified institutional 

isolation is a form of discrimination" in violation of the ADA. 527 U.S. 581,600 

(1999). 

110. Defendants have chosen to implement Budget Bill Item 103.05(A)(1) through 

their plan to build and fully populate a new segregated institution. 

III. Defendants' plan to build and fully populate a new segregated institution and 

Budget Bill Item 103.05(A)(1), to the extent it requires such a plan, will result in 

75 SEVTC residents being placed in the new segregated institution - whether or 

not they "need" institutionalization. 
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112. At the same time, Defendants' plan will result in other SEVTC residents with 

similar needs receiving services in more integrated, community-based ICF-MRs 

and other community placements. 

113. Therefore, Defendants' plan to build and fully populate a new segregated 

institution and Budget Bill Item 103.05(A)(l), to the extent it requires such a plan, 

violate and/or threaten Arc members' ADA rights by placing them at risk of 

receiving services in the new segregated institution instead of the most integrated 

setting appropriate to their needs. 

114. Defendants' plan to build and fully populate a new segregated institution and 

Budget Bill Item 103.05(A)(I), as passed or as implemented by Defendants' plan, 

further violate or threaten Arc members' ADA rights by: 

(i) Denying them appropriate, individualized assessments to determine 
their needs - including which, if any, require services in a new 
segregated institution that cannot be provided in more integrated, 
community-based settings - before deciding to build a new, segregated 
institution; 

(ii) Denying them the opportunity to participate in or benefit from an aid, 
benefit, or service including, but not limited to, services in a more 
integrated, community-based setting; 

(iii) Affording them an opportunity to participate in or benefit from the aid, 
benefit, or service that is not equal to that afforded others; 

(iv) Providing them with an aid, benefit, or service that is not as effective 
in affording equal opportunity to obtain the same result, to gain the 
same benefit, or to reach the same level of achievement as that 
provided to others; 

(v) Providing them with different or separate aids, benefits, or services 
than is provided to others when such action is not necessary to provide 
qualified individuals with disabilities with aids, benefits, or services 
that are as effective as those provided to others; 
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(vi) Otherwise limiting them in the enjoyment of any right, privilege, 
advantage, or opportunity enjoyed by others receiving the aid, benefit, 
or servIce; 

(vii) Utilizing criteria or methods of administration that have the effect of 
subjecting them to discrimination on the basis of disability; 

(viii) Imposing or applying eligibility criteria that screen out or tend to 
screen them out from fully and equally enjoying any service, program, 
or activity, without showing that such criteria can be shown to be 
necessary for the provision of the service, program, or activity being 
offered; and 

(ix) Restricting their ability to interact with nondisabled peers due to the 
segregated and restrictive nature of the institution. 

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION: 

BROUGHT BY THE ARC, IN ITS ORGANIZATIONAL CAPACITY, FOR 

DECLARATORY RELIEF: 

DEFENDANTS' PLAN TO BUILD A NEW SEGREGATED INSTITUTION 

and/or BUDGET BILL ITEM 103.05(A)(1) VIOLATE ARC MEMBERS' 

SECTION 504 RIGHTS 

115. The Arc incorporates and realleges all of the foregoing as if fully set forth hereat. 

116. The Commonwealth of Virginia receives federal funds to provide services to 

individuals with intellectual disabilities, including SEVTC residents. 

117. The Defendants in their official capacity and/or the state agencies they head 

receive Federal financial assistance for the purposes of Section 504. See, 28 

C.F.R. § 41.3 ("recipients" includes any "instrumentality of a State or its political 

subdivision ... or any person to which Federal financial assistance is extended 

directly or through another recipient ."). 

118. There are Arc members residing in SEVTC. 
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119. There are also Arc members at risk of being admitted to SEVTC. These members 

are on the Commonwealth's waiting list for Medicaid services. Each of these 

individuals has been found, by representatives of the Commonwealth, to meet the 

criteria for institutionalization. Some have been found at "urgent" need of 

services in order to avoid institutionalization. If these individuals do not receive 

community-based services, they are at risk of being institutionalized and admitted 

to SEVTC. 

120. The Arc is pursuing this cause of action to protect the Section 504 rights of its 

members. 

121. The Arc members on whose behalf the Arc brings this action are all persons with 

intellectual disabilities (formerly known as "mental retardation") that limit their 

major life activities including, but not limited to, caring for themselves and 

learning. 

122. The Arc members on whose behalf the Arc brings this action all meet the essential 

eligibility requirements to receive, and do receive, services for their intellectual 

disabilities from the Commonwealth of Virginia, its state agencies and officers. 

123. Therefore, the Arc members on whose behalf the Arc brings this action are 

"handicapped persons" and "qualified handicapped persons" for the purposes of 

Section 504. See, 28 C.F.R. §§ 41.31-41.32. 

124. The Arc members on whose behalf the Arc brings this action would have standing 

to bring this action in their own right because Defendants' plan to build and fully 

populate a new segregated institution and Budget Bill Item 103 .05(A)(l), to the 

extent it requires such a plan, violate or threaten their Section 504 rights. 
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125. The Section 504 rights of the Arc members on whose behalf the Arc brings this 

action are germane to the Arc's purpose, including but not limited to 

"advocat[ing] for the rights and full participation of all children and adults with 

intellectual and developmental disabilities." 

126. Neither the claim asserted by the Arc nor the relief sought by the Arc requires the 

participation of individual Arc members. 

127. The Arc members on whose behalfthe Arc brings this action, like all SEVTC 

residents, have a Section 504 right to receive services in the most integrated 

setting appropriate to their needs. 

128. As the state-sponsored study showed, no Arc member at SEVTC - indeed, no 

SEVTC resident - requires services in a new segregated institution that cannot be 

provided in one of the community rCF-MRs or MR homes provided for in Budget 

Bill Item 103.05(A)(3) or in other community placements. 

129. The state-sponsored study notwithstanding, Defendants have not performed 

appropriate or individualized analyses concluding that any Arc member or other 

SEVTC resident requires services in a new segregated institution that cannot be 

provided in a more integrated, community-based setting such as a community 

ICF-MR or other community-based placement. 

130. Section 504 provides that "No otherwise qualified individual with a disability ... 

shall, solely by reason of her or his disability, be excluded from the participation 

in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any program 

or activity receiving Federal financial assistance." 29 U.S.C. § 794. 
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131. Under Section 504, recipients of federal funding must make individualized 

inquiries into the needs of people with disabilities when making decisions or 

taking actions impacting those needs. See, e.g., School Board a/Nassau County 

v. Arline, 480 U.S. 273 (1987) 

132. The regulations implementing Section 504 require programs or activities 

receiving Federal financial assistance to "administer programs and activities in the 

most integrated setting appropriate to the needs of qualified handicapped . 

persons." 28 C.F.R. § 41.51. 

133. Defendants have chosen to implement Budget Bill Item 103.05(A)(1) through 

their plan to build and fully populate a new segregated institution. 

134. Defendants' plan to build and fully populate a new segregated institution and 

Budget Bill Item 103.05(A)(1), to the extent it requires such a plan, will result in 

75 SEVTC residents being placed in the new segregated institution - whether or 

not they "need" institutionalization. 

135. At the same time, Defendants' plan will result in other SEVTC residents with 

similar needs receiving services in more integrated, community-based ICF -MRs 

and other community placements. 

136. Defendants' plan to build and fully populate a new segregated institution and 

Budget Bill Item 103.05(A)(1), as passed or as implemented by Defendants' plan, 

violate and/or threaten Arc members' Section 504 rights by placing them at risk 

of receiving services in a segregated institution instead of in the most integrated 

setting appropriate to their needs. 
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13 7. Defendants' plan to build and fully populate a new segregated institution and 

Budget Bill Item 103.05(A)(1), as passed or as implemented by Defendants' plan, 

further violate Arc members' Section 504 rights and/or threaten their Section 504 

rights by: 

(i) Denying them appropriate, individualized assessments to determine 
their needs - including which, if any, require services in a new 
segregated institution that cannot be provided in more integrated, 
community-based settings - before deciding to build a new, segregated 
institution; 

(ii) Excluding them, solely by reason oftheir disabilities, from services 
provided to others in a program receiving federal financial assistance 
including, but not limited to, services and treatment provided in more 
integrated, community-based settings; 

(iii) Denying them, solely by reason of their disabilities, the benefits of 
services provided to others in a program receiving federal financial 
assistance; 

(iv) Subjecting them, solely by reason of their disabilities, to 
discrimination under a program receiving federal financial assistance; 
and 

(v) Restricting their ability to interact with nondisabled peers due to the 
segregated and restrictive nature of the institution. 
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THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION: 

BROUGHT BY THE ARC, IN ITS OWN RIGHT, FOR DECLARATORY 

RELIEF 

DEFENDANTS' PLAN TO BUILD A NEW SEGREGATED INSTITUTION 

and/or BUDGET BILL ITEM l03.05(A)(1) ARE INVALID, 

UNCONSTITUTIONAL AND UNENFORCEABLE PURSUANT TO THE 

SUPREMACY CLAUSE 

138. The Arc incorporates and realleges all of the foregoing as if fully set forth hereat. 

139. The Arc has opposed Defendants' plan to build and fully populate a new 

segregated institution and Virginia Budget Bill Item 103.05(A)(l), to the extent it 

requires such a plan, as a member of the SEVTC Advisory Committee and 

through its public statements, public efforts and letters to the Governor and other 

policymakers. 

140. The Arc has had to divert resources from previously planned projects and goals in 

order to oppose Defendants' plan and Budget Bill Item 103.05(A)(l), to the extent 

it requires such a plan. 

141. In addition, if Defendants are permitted to implement their plan to build a new 

segregated institution, the Arc will be forced to continue diverting resources from 

its other work in order to provide advocacy for its members and other SEVTC 

residents who are either placed in the new institution or at risk of being placed in 

the new institution. 

142. As part of its efforts to oppose the Defendants' plan and the Budget Bill Item, the 

Arc has expended staff and monetary resources to advocate to the SEVTC 
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Advisory Council that a segregated institution should not be built; formed a new 

chapter to serve people in or at risk of being admitted to SEVTC; engaged in 

advocacy designed to prevent Defendants from building the new institution; 

issued public statements, orally and in writing, opposing the construction of a new 

segregated institution; and met with policymakers, including some of the 

Defendants herein, to educate them about the rights of Arc members and other 

people with intellectual disabilities to live in the most integrated setting and to 

urge them not to build a new segregated institution. 

143. The diversion of the Arc's staff and monetary resources to oppose the Budget Bill 

Item and Defendants' plan have decreased the resources the Arc has to spend on, 

and decreased the work the Arc could do on, its previously planned projects such 

as advocating for the reduction or elimination of the waiting list for Medicaid 

services for individuals with intellectual and developmental disabilities. 

144. In addition, since it began diverting resources to oppose Defendants' plan to build 

and fully populate a new segregated institution and Virginia Budget Bill Item 

103 .05(A)(l), to the extent it requires such a plan, the Arc has also had less staff 

and monetary resources to devote to its other advocacy work such as advocating 

for the retention or restoration of services to its members and other people with 

intellectual and developmental disabilities in the face of state budget cuts and 

advocating for and monitoring the development of community housing for people 

with intellectual and developmental disabilities. 

145. In addition, the Arc also had to divert staff and monetary resources that had been 

earmarked for other activities, including their own internal operations. Because 
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the Arc diverted resources to oppose Defendants' plan to build and fully populate 

a new segregated institution and Virginia Budget Bill Item 1 03.05(A)(1), to the 

extent it requires such a plan, it did not have the resources to complete a 

previously scheduled upgrade to its internet site, which would have provided 

more information and educational material for its members, policymakers and the 

public. 

146. If Defendants are permitted to implement their plan to build and fully populate a 

new segregated institution, the Arc will continue to divert resources in order to 

provide advocacy and services to its members and other residents of the new 

institution and those at risk of being placed in the new institution. This will 

include efforts to educate its members and other residents about their rights to live 

in the most integrated setting and advocacy and advocacy to contend that those 

residents should not be placed in a new segregated institution. 

147. Because it will divert its resources, the Arc will have fewer resources to expend 

on, and will therefore be limited in its ability to work on, previously planned 

projects such as defending existing community-based services from budget cuts; 

advocating for more community housing, educating policymakers, advocating for 

the end of the waiting list for Medicaid services, and upgrading its internet site. 

148. In passing the ADA, Congress found "historically, society has tended to isolate 

and segregate individuals with disabilities .... discrimination against individuals 

with disabilities persists in such critical areas as ... institutionalization ... and 

access to public services. 42 U.S.C. § l21Dl(a)(3). 
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149. The ADA provides that "no qualified individual with a disability shall, by reason 

of such disability, be excluded from participation in or be denied the benefits of 

the services, programs or activities of a public entity, or be subject to 

discrimination by such entity." 42 U.S.C. § 12132. 

150. In its Commentary to the regulations it promulgated to interpret the ADA, the 

United States Department of Justice states, "public entities are required to ensure 

that their actions are based on facts applicable to individuals and not on 

presumptions as to what a class of individuals can or carmot do." Commentary to 

28 C.F.R. § 35.130. 

151. The regulations implementing the ADA require a public entity to administer its 

services, programs and activities in "the most integrated setting appropriate to the 

needs of qualified individuals with disabilities." 28 C.F.R. § 35 .130( d). 

152. In Olmstead, et al. v. L. C, et al., the Supreme Court analyzed the ADA and found 

that "unjustified institutional isolation of persons with disabilities is a form of 

discrimination .... " 527 U.S. 581,600 (1999). 

153. The Court held "Institutional placement of persons who can handle and benefit 

from community settings perpetuates unwarranted assumptions that persons so 

isolated are incapable or unworthy of participating in community life .... 

Second, confinement in an institution severely diminishes the everyday life 

activities of individuals, including family relations, social contacts, work options, 

economic independence, educational advancement, and cultural enrichment. ... 

In order to receive needed medical services, people with mental disabilities must, 

because of those disabilities, relinquish participation in community life they could 
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enj oy given reasonable accommodations, while persons without mental 

disabilities can receive the medical services they need without similar sacrifice." 

527 U.S. at 600. 

154. The Court further held that, in order to comply with the ADA, a State should have 

a "comprehensive working plan for placing qualified persons with mental 

disabilities in less restrictive settings, and a waiting list that moved at a reasonable 

pace not controlled by the State's endeavors to keep its institutions fully 

populated." 527 U.S. at 605-606. 

155. Defendants' plan to build and fully populate a new segregated institution and 

Budget Bill Item 103.05(A)(l), to the extent it requires such a plan, will result in 

75 SEVTC residents being placed in the new segregated institution - whether or 

not they "need" institutionalization. 

156. At the same time, Defendants' plan will result in other SEVTC residents with 

similar needs receiving services in more integrated, community-based rCF-MRs 

and other community placements. 

157. Defendants' plan to build and fully populate a new segregated institution and 

Budget Bill Item 103.05(A)(l), as passed or as implemented by Defendants' plan, 

violate and/or conflict with the ADA by: 

(i) Denying SEVTC residents appropriate, individualized assessments to 
determine their needs - including which, if any, require services in a 
new segregated institution that cannot be provided in more integrated, 
community-based settings - before deciding to build a new, segregated 
institution; 

(ii) Denying SEVTC residents services in the most integrated setting 
appropriate to their needs; 

(iii) Forcing SEVTC residents into "unjustified institutional isolation;" 
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(iv) Failing and/or refusing to create a "comprehensive, effective plan for 
placing qualified persons with mental disabilities in less restrictive 
settings;" 

(v) Creating a plan that "endeavors to keep [the new] institution fully 
populated; " 

(vi) Denying qualified individuals with disabilities the opportunity to 
participate in or benefit from an aid, benefit, or service; 

(vii) Affording qualified individuals with disabilities an opportunity to 
participate in or benefit from the aid, benefit, or service that is not 
equal to that afforded others including, but not limited to, services 
provided in more integrated, community-based settings; 

(viii) Providing qualified individuals with disabilities with an aid, benefit, or 
service that is not as effective in affording equal opportunity to obtain 
the same result, to gain the same benefit, or to reach the same level of 
achievement as that provided to others; 

(ix) Providing different or separate aids, benefits, or services to individuals 
with disabilities or to any class of individuals with disabilities than is 
provided to others when such action is not necessary to provide 
qualified individuals with disabilities with aids, benefits, or services 
that are as effective as those provided to others; 

(x) Otherwise limiting qualified individuals with disabilities in the 
enjoyment of any right, privilege, advantage, or opportunity enjoyed 
by others receiving the aid, benefit, or service; 

(xi) Utilizing criteria or methods of administration that have the effect of 
SUbjecting qualified individuals with disabilities to discrimination on 
the basis of disability; 

(xii) Imposing or applying eligibility criteria that screen out or tend to 
screen out an individual with a disability or any class of individuals 
with disabilities from fully and equally enjoying any service, program, 
or activity, without showing that such criteria can be shown to be 
necessary for the provision of the service, program, or activity being 
offered; and 

(xiii) Restricting individuals with disabilities' ability to interact with 
nondisabled peers due to the segregated and restrictive nature of the 
institution. 
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158. Section 504 provides that "No otherwise qualified individual with a disability ... 

shall, solely by reason of her or his disability, be excluded from the participation 

in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any program 

or activity receiving Federal financial assistance." 29 U.S.C. § 794. 

159. The regulations implementing Section 504 require programs or activities 

receiving Federal financial assistance to "administer programs and activities in the 

most integrated setting appropriate to the needs of qualified handicapped 

persons." 28 C.F.R. § 41.51. 

160. Under Section 504, recipients of federal funding must make individualized 

inquiries into the needs of people with disabilities when making decisions or 

taking actions impacting those needs. See, e.g., School Board of Nassau County v. 

Arline, 480 U.S. 273 (1987) 

161. Defendants' plan to build and fully populate a new segregated institution and/or 

Budget Bill Item 103.05(A)(1), as passed or as implemented by Defendants' plan, 

violate Section 504 by: 

(i) Denying SEVTC residents appropriate, individualized assessments to 
determine their needs - including which, if any, require services in a 
new segregated institution that cannot be provided in more integrated, 
community-based settings - before deciding to build a new, segregated 
institution; 

(ii) Excluding qualified individuals with disabilities, solely by reason of 
their disabilities, from services provided to others, including, but not 
limited to, services provided in integrated, community-based settings; 

(iii) Denying qualified individuals with disabilities, solely by reason of 
their disabilities, the benefits of services provided to others; 

(iv) Subjecting qualified individuals with disabilities, solely by reason of 
their disabilities, to discrimination under a program receiving federal 
financial assistance; 
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(v) Denying qualified individuals with disabilities services in the most 
integrated setting appropriate to their needs; and. 

(vi) Restricting individuals with disabilities' ability to interact with 
nondisabled peers due to the segregated and restrictive nature of the 
institution. 

162. Because Defendants' plan to build and fully populate a new segregated institution 

and Budget Bill Item 103.05(A)(1), as passed or as implemented by Defendants' 

plan, violate the ADA and Section 504, they are preempted, unconstitutional and 

unenforceable pursuant to the Supremacy Clause of the Constitution of the United 

States. U.S. Const. art. VI, cl. 2 

163. Defendants' plan to build and fully populate a new segregated institution and 

Budget Bill Item 103.05(A)(1), as passed or as implemented by Defendants' plan, 

conflict with the ADA and Section 504 and stand as an obstacle to the 

accomplishment of the full purposes and objectives ofthe ADA and Section 504, 

including, but not limited to, the objective of ensuring that people with disabilities 

receive services in the most integrated setting appropriate to their needs. 

164. Therefore, Defendants' plan to build and fully populate a new segregated 

institution and Budget Bill Item 103.05(A)(I), as passed or as implemented by 

Defendants' plan, are preempted by the ADA and Section 504 and are 

unconstitutional and unenforceable pursuant to the Supremacy Clause of the 

Constitution of the United States. U.S. Const. art. VI, cl. 2. 

35 



Case 3:09-cv-00686-REP   Document 1   Filed 10/27/09   Page 36 of 62 PageID# 36

FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION: 

BROUGHT BY THE ARC, IN ITS ORGANIZATIONAL CAPACITY, FOR 

INJUNCTIVE RELIEF: 

DEFENDANTS SHOULD BE ENJOINED FROM BUILDING THE NEW 

INSTITUTION BECAUSE THEIR PLAN TO DO SO, and/or BUDGET BILL 

ITEM I03.05(A)(1), VIOLATE ARC MEMBERS' ADA RIGHTS 

165. The Arc incorporates and realleges all of the foregoing as if fully set forth hereat. 

166. Defendants' plan to build and fully populate a new segregated institution and 

Budget Bill Item I03.05(A)(l), as passed or as implemented by Defendants' plan, 

violate and/or threaten Arc members' ADA rights, as described above, including 

but not limited to their right to receive services in the most integrated setting 

appropriate to their needs. 

167. Defendants' plan to build and fully populate a new segregated institution and 

Budget Bill Item 103.05(A)(l), as passed or as implemented by Defendants' plan, 

cause Arc members irreparable harm, or place them at risk of irreparable harm, 

that has no remedy at law, including continued violation or threatening of their 

ADA rights and continued, unjustified and indefinite institutionalization. 
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FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION: 

BROUGHT BY THE ARC, IN ITS ORGANIZATIONAL CAPACITY, FOR 

INJUNCTIVE RELIEF: 

DEFENDANTS SHOULD BE ENJOINED FROM BUILDING THE NEW 

INSTITUTION BECAUSE THEIR PLAN TO DO SO, and/or BUDGET BILL 

ITEM 103.05(A)(1), VIOLATE ARC MEMBERS' SECTION 504 RIGHTS 

168. The Arc incorporates and realleges all of the foregoing as if fully set forth hereat. 

169. Defendants' plan to build and fully populate a new segregated institution and 

Budget Bill Item 103.05(A)(1), as passed or as implemented by Defendants' plan, 

violate and/or threaten Arc members' Section 504 rights, as described above, 

including but not limited to their right to receive services in the most integrated 

setting appropriate to their needs. 

170. Defendants' plan to build and fully populate a new segregated institution and 

Budget Bill Item 103.05(A)(I), as passed or as implemented by Defendants' plan, 

cause Arc members irreparable harm, or place them at risk of irreparable harm, 

that has no remedy at law, including continued violation or threatening of their 

Section 504 rights and continued, unjustified and indefinite institutionalization. 
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SIXTH CAUSE OF ACTION: 

BROUGHT BY THE ARC, IN ITS OWN RIGHT FOR INJUNCTIVE RELIEF 

DEFENDANTS SHOULD BE ENJOINED FROM BUILDING THE NEW 

INSTITUTION BECAUSE THEIR PLAN TO DO SO, and/or BUDGET BILL 

ITEM l03.0S(A)(1), ARE INVALID, UNCONSTITUTIONAL AND 

UNENFORCEABLE PURSUANT TO THE SUPREMACY CLAUSE 

171. The Arc incorporates and realleges all of the foregoing as if fully set forth hereat. 

172. Injunctive relief is available to enjoin state officers from implementing laws or 

taking actions preempted under the Supremacy Clause of the Constitution of the 

United States. U.S. Const. art. VI, cl. 2. 

173. Defendants' plan to build and fully populate a new segregated institution and 

Budget Bill Item 103.05(A)(I), as passed or as implemented by Defendants' plan, 

violate and/or conflict with the ADA and Section 504 and stand as an obstacle to 

the accomplishment of the full purposes and objectives of those Acts, including, 

but not limited to, the objective of ensuring that people with disabilities receive 

services in the most integrated setting appropriate to their needs. 

174. Unless Defendants are enjoined from implementing their plan, they will build the 

segregated institution called for in their plan and/or Budget Bill Item 

103 .05(A)(l), causing Arc members and other persons with intellectual 

disabilities irreparable harm that has no remedy at law, including continued 

violation or threatening of their ADA and Section 504 rights and continued, 

unjustified and indefinite institutionalization. 
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175. This irreparable harm, and/or the threat of it, will cause the Arc to continue to 

divert resources to counter or minimize the harm to its members, other people 

with intellectual disabilities, and its mission. 

PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

WHEREFORE, your Plaintiff, The Arc of Virginia, Inc., respectfully prays that this Court grant 

it the following relief: 

On Count One 

A. Enter a Declaratory Judgment setting forth Arc members' rights to receive 

appropriate services from the Defendants under the ADA, including but not 

limited to their right to receive services in the most integrated setting appropriate 

to their needs; 

B. Enter a Declaratory Judgment setting forth Defendants' obligations to provide 

appropriate services to the Plaintiffs under the ADA, including but not limited to 

their obligation to provide services in the most integrated setting appropriate to 

their needs; 

C. Enter a Declaratory Judgment holding that Defendants' plan to build and fully 

populate a new segregated institution and Budget Bill Item l03.05(A)(l), as 

passed or as implemented by Defendants' plan, violate Arc members' ADA 

rights, including but not limited to their right to receive services in the most 

integrated setting appropriate to their needs; 
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D. Grant the Arc their legal costs and attorneys' fees to the extent authorized by law; 

and 

E. Grant the Arc such other and further relief that to this Court seems just and 

proper. 

On Count Two 

A. Enter a Declaratory Judgment setting forth Arc members' rights to receive 

appropriate treatment services from the Defendants under Section 504, including 

but not limited to their right to receive services in the most integrated setting 

appropriate to their needs; 

B. Enter a Declaratory Judgment setting forth Defendants' obligations to provide 

appropriate services to Plaintiffs under Section 504, including but not limited to 

their obligation to provide services in the most integrated setting appropriate to 

their needs; 

C. Enter a Declaratory Judgment holding that Defendants' plan to build and fully 

populate a new segregated institution and Budget Bill Item 103 .05(A)(l), as 

passed or as implemented by Defendants' plan, violate Arc members' Section 504 

rights, including but not limited to their right to receive services in the most 

integrated setting appropriate to their needs; 

D. Grant the Arc their legal costs and attorneys' fees to the extent authorized by law; 

and 

E. Grant the Arc such other and further relief that to this Court seems just and 

proper. 
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On Count Three 

A. Enter a Declaratory Judgment holding that Defendants' plan to build and fully 

populate a new segregated institution and Budget Bill Item I 03.05(A)(l), as 

passed or as implemented by Defendants' plan, violate and/or conflict with the 

ADA; 

B. Enter a Declaratory Judgment holding that Defendants' plan to build and fully 

populate a new segregated institution and Budget Bill Item 103.05(A)(l), as 

passed or as implemented by Defendants' plan, violate and/or conflict with 

Section 504; 

C. Enter a Declaratory Judgment holding that Defendants' plan to build and fully 

populate a new segregated institution and Budget Bill Item 103 .05(A)(l), as 

passed or as implemented by Defendants' plan, are preempted by the ADA and 

are, therefore, unconstitutional and unenforceable pursuant to the Supremacy 

Clause of the Constitution of the United States; 

D. Enter a Declaratory Judgment holding that Defendants' plan to build and fully 

populate a new segregated institution and Budget Bill Item 103 .05(A)(l), as 

passed or as implemented by Defendants' plan, are preempted by Section 504 

and are, therefore, unconstitutional and unenforceable pursuant to the Supremacy 

Clause of the Constitution of the United States; 

E. Order the Defendants to pay the Arc's attorneys fees and costs, to the extent 

authorized by law; 

F. Grant the Arc such other and further relief that to this Court seems just and 

proper. 
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On Count Four 

A. Preliminarily and Permanently Enjoin the Defendants from implementing their 

plan to build a new segregated institution and fully populate it with SEVTC 

residents; 

B. To the extent that Budget Bill Item 103.05(A)(I) requires the construction of a 

new, segregated institution for SEVTC residents, preliminarily and permanently 

enjoin the Defendants from complying with it and from building that institution; 

C. Enjoin the Defendants to conduct appropriate individualized assessments of 

SEVTC residents - to include nationally recognized assessment tools by an 

independent evaluator acceptable to the Arc - to determine the actual needs of 

SEVTC residents; 

D. Enjoin the Defendants to meet the needs of SEVTC residents in the most 

integrated setting appropriate to their needs; 

E. Order the Defendants to pay the Arc's attorneys fees and costs, as authorized by 

the ADA; and 

F. Grant the Arc such other and further relief that to this Court seems just and 

proper. 

On Count Five 

A. Preliminarily and Permanently Enjoin the Defendants from implementing their 

plan to build a new segregated institution and fully populate it with SEVTC 

residents; 
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B. To the extent that Budget Bill Item I 03.05(A)(I) requires the construction of a 

new, segregated institution for SEVTC residents, preliminarily and permanently 

enjoin the Defendants from complying with it and from building that institution; 

C. Enjoin the Defendants to conduct appropriate individualized assessments of 

SEVTC residents - to include nationally recognized assessment tools by an 

independent evaluator acceptable to the Arc - to determine the actual needs of 

SEVTC residents; 

D. Enjoin the Defendants to meet the needs of SEVTC residents in the most 

integrated setting appropriate to their needs; 

E. Order the Defendants to pay the Arc's attorneys fees and costs, as authorized by 

Section 504; and 

F. Grant the Arc such other and further relief that to this Court seems just and 

proper. 

On Count Six 

A. Preliminarily and Permanently Enjoin the Defendants from implementing their 

plan to build a new segregated institution and fully populate it with SEVTC 

residents; 

B. To the extent that Budget Bill Item 103 .05(A)(I) requires the construction of a 

new, segregated institution for SEVTC residents, preliminarily and permanently 

enjoin the Defendants from complying with it and from building that institution; 

C. Order the Defendants to pay the Arc's attorneys' fees and costs, to the extent 

authorized by law; and 
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D. Grant the Arc such other and further relief that to this Court seems just and 

proper. 

Dated: 27 October 2009 

Respectfully Submitted: 

The Arc of Virginia, Inc. 
by counsel 

The Virginia Office for Protection and Advocacy 
1910 Byrd Avenue, Suite 5 
Richmond, V A 23230 
Tele: (804) 225-2042 
Fax: (804) 662-7431 

V. Colle~\II1l1 

Jonathan G. Martinis, M . g Attorney 
'-'Virginia State Bar Numb : 37299 

Virginia Office for Protection and Advocacy 
Attorney for Plaintiff 
1910 Byrd Avenue, Suite 5 
Riclnnond, VA 23230 
Telephone: (804) 225-2042 
Fax: (804) 662-7431 
E-mail: J onathan.Martinis@VOPAVirginia.Gov 

Virginia Office for Protection and Advocacy 
Attorney for Plaintiff 
1910 Byrd Avenue, Suite 5 
Riclnnond, VA 23230 
Telephone: (804) 225-2042 
Fax: (804) 662-7431 
E-mail: Kalena.Ek@VOPAVirginia.Gov 
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pdf view 

Department of Mental Health, Mental Retardation and Substaoce Abuse Services (720) 

103.05 (laoguage only) 

A. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, the following provisions shall be implemented: 

1. The Department of General Services (DGS), with the cooperation and support of the Department of Mental 
Health, Mental Retardation and Substance Abuse Services (DMHMRSAS), shall rebuild and resize the 
Southeastern Virginia Training Center to a 75-bedfacility to serve profound and severely disabled clients; 

2. The Director, Department of Planning and Budget, shall transfer $23,768,000 of the amount appropriated in 
Chapter 1 and Chapter 2,2008 Acts of Assembly, Special Session Ifor project 17458 (Repair/Replace 
Southeastern Virginia Training Center) for the purpose stated in paragraph A.l. of this item; 

3. The Department of General Services, with the cooperation and support of the Department of Mental Health, 
Mental Retardation and Substance Abuse Services (DMHMRSAS), shall build, acquire, or renovate 12 
community-based Intermediate Care Facilities (ICF-MR) and 6 MR Homes in Health Planning Region V Priority 
should be given to projects which can be completed on existing state-owned property within Health Planning 
Region v,. 

4. The Director, Department of Planning and Budget shall transfer $8,438,160 of the amount appropriated in 
Chapter 1 and Chapter 2, 2008 Acts of Assembly, Special Session Ifor project 17457, (Repair/Replace Central 
Virginia Training Center) for the purpose stated in paragraph A.3. of this item. 

5. q[ the remaining appropriation in Chapter 1 and Chapter 2, 2008 Acts of Assembly, Special Session Ifor 
project 17457, (Repair/Replace Central Virginia Training Center), $10,061,840 is designatedfor project 17733, 
(Construction of Community Housingfor Central Virginia). 

6. The Governor, the Director, Department of Planning and Budget and the Director, Department of General 
Services, shall suspend the regular capital outlay process and initiate an expedited, fast track capital outlay 
process to ensure the timely availability of both the rebuilt and resized Southeastern Virginia Training Center and 
the 12 community-based Intermediate Care Facilities (ICF-MR) and 6 Mental Retardation Homes in Health 
Planning Region V. The Governor's expedited process shall be submitted to the Chairmen of the House 
Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees for approval by July 15, 2009. 

B. The Department of General Services (DGS), with the cooperation and support of the Department of Mental 
Health, Mental Retardation and Substance Abuse Services (DMHMRSAS), shall examine the potential uses for the 
Southeastern Virginia Training Center property and report on such uses to Chairmen of the House Appropriations 
and Senate Finance Committees by November 1, 2009. 

previous item J next item J new search J table of contents JI!m!lI: 
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INFORMATION BRIEF 
Virginia SIS Comparisons for SEVTC and 

Comprehensive Community Waiver Populations 

June 23, 2009 

Prepared by: 

Jon Fortune Ed.D. & Karen J. Auerbach Ph.D. 
Human Services Research Institute 
Developmental Services 

On Behalf of: 

C. Lee Price, Director 
Office of 

7420 SW Bridgeport Road (#210) 
Developmental Services 
portland, OR 97224 

The Department of Behavioral Health and 

Introduction 

PO Box 1707 
Richmond, VA 23218-1797 

Virginia has used the Supports Intensity Scale (SIS) for years to write better individual service 
plans for people in the community and to describe the support needs of the individuals being 
served. In this HSRllnformation Brief the results from the SIS assessments are described and 
compared for individuals from Southeastem Virginia Training Center (SEVTC) and individuals 
being served statewide by the state's comprehensive waiver. 

Results -1. All Individuals Can Be Served in the Community 

Overall, the 156 people at SEVTC and a sample group of 521 people in the Virginia 
comprehensive waiver have SIS results that can be easily compared. One main conclusion is 
that these individuals with developmental disabilities are all clinically eligible for Medicaid and 
each person can be served by the Virginia community comprehensive waiver. The Virginia 
community ranges of scores for (1) the SIS Support Needs Index (SNI), (2) the sum of Section 1 
ABE standard scores (A is Home Living Activities, B is Community Living Activities, and E is Health 
and Safety Activities) capturing key support needs, (3) the total Medical problems, and (4) the 
total Behavioral problems for the individuals in the community encompass the range of scores 
for all of the people at SEVTC. This means that there are people being successfully served with 

SNI 
mmunity who are like the people facing these challenges at SEVTC. 

stitute 1 
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80 90 

The 521 people being served 
in the community include 
people with the same support 
needs, behavioral 
challenges, and medical 
problems -

(1, Ihp. 19 .. np.()nIFl livinn (11 
Results - 2. People CurrenTlY LIVing <lJ ;>1:: V" .. n<lve 

Considerable Needs for Support 

160 
Support Needs Index 

Community 

ABE 

Medical 

Behavior 

SNI 

SEVTC 

ABE 

Medical 

Behavior 

SNI 

Minimum Maximum 

12 52 

0 22 

0 20 

60 143 

27 42 

0 22 

0 20 

90 124 

The 156 individuals currently living at the SEVTC have considerable needs for support and 
are depicted on the graph on the right. Though smaller than the sample group from the 
community, the 156 people from SEVTC have a higher need for general support needs 
that staff members, family, and friends can help with. They have statistically higher needs 
in the key areas of Home Living Activities, Community Living Activities, and Health and 
Safety Activities and more medical problems than the community sample. The 
behavioral problems measured by the SIS are statistically the same for the community 
sample and the people currently living at SEVTC. In the following summary table the SIS 
results for people from SEVTC represent the greatest needs of all the various comparison 
groups offered. 

SIS Norm Group and State Waiver SIS Results 

I L G=.r:.:o:=uI:.p-=o:...;.r s=:.ta.:::;t:=e __ ....LI...:..P..::.e~op"-'l.=...Je I I 
Total Support ABE Medical Behavioral 

Hwnan Services Research Institute 2 
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Needs Index Support Support Support 
Needs 

(Range 38- (Range 0- (Range 0-
143) (8-52) 32) 26) 

SIS Norms 1,306 100.00 30.00 2.47 4.99 

SE Virginia Training 156 111.96 35.37 6.32 5.25 
Center (SEVTCI 
Sample from the 
Central Virginia 75 108.95 34.73 3.72 3.80 
Training Center 

Comprehensive Adult HCBS Waivers 

Virginia Waiver 521 101.74 30.56 2.43 4.77 

Oregon 401 101.00 29.95 3.27 4.98 

Colorado 3,631 99.88 29.14 2.83 6.13 

Georgia 5,206 98.20 28.72 1.95 3.79 

Nebraska 288 100.42 30.11 3.23 4.81 

Utah 3,759 100.09 29.96 2.29 4.36 

Human Services Research Institute 3 
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Technical Notes 

The SIS Support Needs Index (SNI) is an IQ like score representing support needs with an 
average of 100 and a standard deviation of 15. The sum of Section 1 ABE standard scores 
capturing key support needs is normed with the combined standard score of 30. The total 
Medical problems and total Behavioral problems are weighted-counts of the challenges 
people face in those important areas. The following tables provide more detailed 
comparisons of the SIS results from people at SEVTC and people using the Virginia 
community comprehensive waiver. 

The range of these four SIS scores for the SEVTC institution group break into 3 roughly equal 
groups and the majority of scores of individuals in the Community group also fall into these 
3 groups. These findings indicate that there are people in the Community with the same 
challenges as those faced by the people at SEVTC. 

Support Needs Index Scores 

SNI SCORES 90 to 108 109 to 114 115 to 124 TOTAL 
Institution Group 30% 34% 36% 100% 

Community Group 52% 15% 11 % 78% 

Sum of Section 1 ABE Scores 

SUM ABE SCORES 27 to 33 34 to 36 37 to 42 TOTAL 

Institution Group 30% 31% 39% 100% 

Community Group 42% 18% 10% 70% 

Section 3a Medical Scores 

MEDICAL SCORES Oto 2 3 to 7 8 to 22 TOTAL 
Institution Group 28% 39% 33% 100% 

Community Group 68% 26% 6% 100% 

Section 3b Behavioral Scores 

BEHAVIORAL o to 2 3 to 7 8 to 20 TOTAL 
SCORES 

Institution Group 35% 35% 30% 100% 

Community Group 41% 36% 23% 100% 

Human Services Research Institute 4 
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Virginia Descriptive Statistics 

Minimu Maximu Averag Std. 
Groups from Virginia People m m e Deviation 

community Sum ABE Stand SUM 521 12 52 30.56 6.406 
of ABE Standard 
Score 

Section3aTotai 521 0 22 2.43 3.138 
Section 3a Medical 
Total 

Section3b Total 521 0 20 4.77 4.592 
Section 3b Behavior 

Total 
, 

Supports Needs 521 60 143 101.74 13.441 
Index 

leaving Sum ABE Stand SUM 156 27 42 35.37 3.283 
institution of ABE Standard 

Score 

Section3aTotai 156 0 22 6.32 5.284 
Section 3a Medical 

Total 

Section3bTotai 156 0 20 5.27 4.697 
Section 3b Behavior 

Total 

Support Needs Index 156 90 124 111.96 6.569 

Virginia Group Statistics 

Groups from Std. Std. Error 
Virginia People Average Deviation Mean 

Sum ABE Stand SUM community 521 30.56 6.406 .281 

of ABE Standard leaving 156 35.37 3.283 .259 
Score institution 

Section3aTotai community 521 2.43 3.138 .137 

Human Services Research Institute 5 
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leaving institution 156 6,32 5.284 .425 

Section3b Total community 521 4.77 4.592 .201 
Section 3b Behavior leaving institution 156 5.25 4.697 .378 
Total 

Support Needs Index community 521 101.74 13.441 .589 
group 

leaving institution 156 111.96 6.569 .519 

Virginia Independent Samples Test 

Levene's 
Test for 

Equality of 

Variances t-test for Equality of Means 

95% 
Confidence 

Interval of the 

Difference 

Sig. Std. 
2- Mean Error 

taile Differ Differe 
F Sig. t df d ence nce Lower Upper 

Sum ABE Equal 48.888 .000 -9.109 674 .000 -4.862 .534 -5.909 -3.814 

Stand SUM variances 

of ABE assumed 

Standard Equal -12.733 517.08 .000 -4.862 .382 -5.612 -4.111 
Score variances 8 

not 

assumed 

Section30T Equal 95.227 .000 -11.449 674 .000 -3.918 .342 -4.590 -3.246 

otol Section variances 

30 Medical assumed 

Hwnan Services Research Institute 6 
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Equal -8.774 187.33 .000 -3.918 .447 -4.799 -3.037 
variances 4 
not 
assumed 

Section3b Equal .508 .476 -1.191 674 .234 -.503 .423 -1.333 .326 

Total variances 
Section 3b assumed 
Behavior Equal -1.175 247.77 .241 -.503 .428 -1.346 .340 
Total variances 1 

not 

assumed 

Support Equal 63.371 .000 -9.246 674 .000 - 1.117 - -8.131 

Needs variances 10.324 12.516 

Index assumed 

Equal -13.152 540.38 .000 - .785 - -8.782 
variances 2 10.324 11.866 
not 

assumed 

Appendix: Validity Results of the SIS 

./ Face Validity. Developed to measure the construct of supports, the SIS has greater face 
validity than the ICAP or other traditional assessments. The assessment of support needs 
using the SIS is done directly by persons with first-hand knowledge of the individual. The SIS 
directly measures the level of supports needed to enable an individual to participate 
successfully in the life of his or her community. It necessarily looks at more than skills and 
deficits, considering motivation, health, etiology, problem behavior, environment and other 
variables influencing the need for supports. By measuring individual support needs directly, it 
avoids the error inherent in inferring support needs statistically based on adaptive and 
maladaptive behavior scales. It is transparent. The SIS assessment of needed supports is 
more explicit and straightforward than other traditional instruments, and hence is a more 
open platform for the stakeholder deliberation and decision-making that attends individual 
resource allocation and payment processes. The SIS uses multi-point scales to rate the type 
(monitoring - full physical assistance), frequency (none to hourly) and intensity (no time to 
more than 4 hours in a 24 hour period) of supports needed by an individual to participate in 
57 distinct aspects of life in their communities. Behavioral, health and other factors affecting 
support needs are considered . 

./ Content Validity. To assure its content validity, the SIS was constructs were tested by 74 
professionals working in the field of developmental disabilities. Using a Q-sort methodology, 
they narrowed the 130 candidate support indicators to 57, and reduced the 12 domains 
containing these indicators to seven. This makes the instrument more concise while still 

Human Services Research Institute 7 
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asking the right questions. Efforts have been made to see the efficacy of the SIS in 
predicting extraordinary support needs (N=274)'. 

,( Intemal Consistency. The SIS is intemally consistenf2. It has good inter-item reliability (all items 
or subscales in the measure are measuring the same construct). The intemal consistency 
reliability coefficients for all the SIS subscales. computed using Cronbach's Alpha method3• 

exceeded .90. which is the level widely accepted as demonstrating an acceptable level of 
intemal consistency in assessment scales. The SIS also has a high degree of inter-rater 
reliability4: the SIS Index (total score) correlation coefficient was .87 (same interviewer. 
different respondent) •. 90 (different interviewer. same respondents), and .85 (different 
interviewer and different respondents) (N=40). 

,( Construct and criterion validity. The high correlation of SIS subscale scores with one another 
shows that the SIS measure has good construct validity. meaning that scores on the SIS are 
highly correlated with scores on measures of other constructs (for example. adaptive 
behavior and intelligence) that are believed to be correlated with the construct measured 
by the SIS. To establish its criterion validity. the SIS measures of support needs were 
correlated with an independently constructed "criterion measure" - a Likert-type scale of 
support needs. All correlation coefficients exceeded the .35 minimum level required to 
demonstrate criterion-related validitys. Support for the construct validity of the Supports 
Intensity Scale based on clinician rankings of need (N=50) was explored in Ontario Canada 
in 2009.6 

1 Wehmeyer. M .. Chapman. T. E .• Little. T.D .. Thompson. J. R .• Shalock. R .. and Tasse. M. J. Efficacy of the Supports Intensity Scale (SIS) 
to Predict Extraordinary Support Needs. American Journal of Intel/ectual and Developmental DIsabilities. 114( 1). 3-14. 

2 Tasse. M. J. Thompson. J. R. & McLaughlin. C. (2006). Inter·interviewer and inter-respondent concordance on the Supports Intensity 
Scale. Poster presentation at the International Summit for the Alliance on Social Inclusion. May 3-5. Montreal, Canada. 

3 Cronbach. L.J. (1951). Coefficient alpha and the intemal structure of fests. Psychometrika. 16(3). 297-334. 

4 Thompson. J. (Feb 21. 2006). SIS reliability: preliminary findings and procedures. Email tram J. Thompson to J. Ashbaugh. 

5 Hammill. D.D .• Brown. L .• and Bryant. B.R. (1992). A consumer guide to tests in print. Austin. TX: Pro-Ed. 

6 Weiss. J. A .• Lunsky. Y .• Tasse. M. J .• & Durbin. J. (2009). Support tor the construct validity ot the Supports Intensity Scale based on 
clinician rankings of need. Research in Developmental Disabilities. 30, 933-941. 

Human Services Research Institute 8 
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COMMONWEALTH of VIRGINIA 
DEPARTMENt OF 

BENA VIORAL HEALTH liND DEVELOPMENTIIL SERVICES 

JAMES S. RErNliARD. M.D, 
COMMISSIONER 

Post Office 80x 1797 
Ridunon4. Virginia 23218·1797 

July 6, 2009 

Jonathan G. Martinis, Managing Attorney 
Virginia Office for Protection and Advocacy 
19JO ByrdAvenue, Suite 5 
Richmand, Virginia 23230 

Dear Mr. Martinis: 

PAGE 1/ 3 

Telephone (804) 786-3921 
VoiocrroD (804)371·8977 

www.dbhd5,virginia.gov 

I am responding to your information request submitted via facsimile on June 26, 2009. J tTUst 
my response finds you well, too. Your letter requested the following information: 

(T)he committee agreed to the following wording tbr the tirst statement: 

Provide services and supports for individuals who present complex medical 
and/or behavioral needs that cannot be met in traditional community homes, with 
goals and efforts to allain appropriate community services. 

Will you please identitY who these "individuals" are anticipated 10 be and trom where they will 
come'? In other words, will current SRVTC residents make up this group or will the 
"individuals" be drawn trom other institutions/the community'! 

The answer to thi.\" question is that the process/or determining the identity o;ffhe 
individuals who will he o;{fered SEVTC beds is currently under development. No 
one has yel been selected a.\" a candidateji,r an SEVTC hed at this date. 

You asked us t{l provide you with a copy of the "purpose statement" discussed in the Summary. 
Attached is a copy of the statement "Future Role/Purpose ofSEVTC." 

Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions. 

Sincerely, 

James S. Reinhard, M.D 
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SEVTC Advisory COmmittee - May 26, 2009 

Final Approved by Committee 5/26/09 

Future Role/Purpose of SEVTC 

• Provide services and supports for individuals who present complex medical 
and/or behavioral needs that cannot currently be met in traditional 
community homes, with goals and efforts to attain appropriate community 
services. 

• Provide services and supports for individuals who present behavioral 
challenges that require short-term, intensive intervention to return 
to the community 

• Provide services and supports for individuals that require short-term 
respite and/or stabilization 

• Provide services and supports for individuals that require short-term 
medication stabilization 

• Provide services and supports for facility and community residents 
through the Regional Community Support Center 
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CQMMONWEALTH of VIRGINIA 
TofJ Free AssisUlncc 
\ -800-552-3962 
(TTY Or Voice) 

Virginia Office for Protection and Advocacy 
1910 Byrd Avenue, Suite 5 

Richmond, VA 23230 

(804) 22S-204Z 
FAX (504) 062.10S7 
.WWW.vopa.sultc:.V8.U:( 

le'd 

25 June 2009 

Dr. James Reinhard, Com,inissioner 
Virginia Department ofl\1ental Health, Mental Retardation 
And Substance Abuse Services 
1220 Bank Street 
Richlnond, VA 23219 

Dear Dr. Reinhard: 

I hope this letter finds yoil well. I am writing to request information about the 75 bed institution your 
Department plans to buil~ as a replacement for Southeastern Virginia Training Center (SEVTC). 

I have reviewed the SEVTC Advisory Committee Meeting Summary for the May 26, 2009 meeting 
(copy attached). Page three of the Summaty references the "Updated Statement on the Future 
RoIe/PUIpose of SEVTC;" The document states: 

[T)he committee agreed to the following wording for the :first statement: 

Provide silrV\ces and supportS for individuals who present complex medical andlor 
behaviora;! needs that cannot be met in traditional community homes, with goals and 
efforts to attain appropriate community services. 

,.' 
Will you please identify who these "individuals" are anticipated ~ be and from where they will come? 
In other words, will ClllTf'Ilt SEVTC reaidents make up this group or will the "individuals" be drawn 
from other institutionsltllc community? Finally, please provide me with a copy of the "pUIpose 
statement" discuss~ in the Summary. If the statement is olllya draft. please so state. 

Thank you for you courtesy and cooperation with regard to this matter. If you have any questions 
~oncerni\lg this request, :please feel free to contact me at (804) 662-7306. 

88991.!.86 

Virginia's Protection and Advocacy System 
Serving Persuns with Disabilities 

Ol 18j;>L 299 j;>es 
6002 92 Nnr 
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COMMONWEALTH of VIRGINIA 

Mark E. Rubin 
Counselor to the Governor 

V. Colleen Miller, Esquire 
Executive Director 

Office of the Governor 

August 18, 2009 

Virginia Office for Protection and Advocacy 
1910 Byrd Avenue, Suite 5 
Richmond, VA 23230 

Dear Ms. Miller: 

Governor Kaine is in receipt of your request for records made to him as well as 
Secretaries Tavenner and Baskerville made in accordance with the Virginia Freedom of 
Information Act (§ 2.2-3700 et seq.). 

Your request for information is as follows: 

" ... we ask that you, Secretary Tavenner and Secretary Baskerville forward us copies of 
all assessments, evaluations, studies or documents that were created or reviewed prior -to 
or leading to the conclusion that a new 75 bed institution is needed or appropriate. These 
should include any individualized assessments (please redact the names or personal 
identifying information of any persons with disabilities) indicating that a new institution 
is required to house people with disabilities and any documents indicating how, 
specifically, the 75 bed census was determined." 

We completed a thorough search of our records, including those within the 
Department of General Services and the Department of Behavioral Health and 
Developmental Services. There are no documents in the possession of the Govemor's 
office, Secretary Tavenner or Secretary Baskerville that are responsive to your request. 

As you are aware, Governor Kaine proposed to close Southeastem Virginia 
Training Center (SEVTC) by June 30, 2009 in the budget he submitted to the 2009 
General Assembly. It was the General Assembly that established the Appropriations Act 

Patrick Henry Building. 1111 East Broad Street· Richmond, Virginia 23219· (804) 786·2211 • TTY (800) 828·1120 
Mark.Rubin@governor.virginia.gov • www.governor.virginia.gov 
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language to construct a new 75 bed facility at SEVTC. Should you have any questions or 
would like to discuss this matter further, please do not hesitate to contact me. 

Sincerely, 

Mark E. Rubin 

c: The Honorable Marilyn B. Tavenner, Secretary of Health and Human Resources 
The Honorable Viola O. Baskerville, Secretary of Administration 
James B. Reinhard, MD, Commissioner, Department of Behavioral Health & 

Developmental Services 
Rich Sliwoski, Director, Department of General Services 


